
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

City of Dripping Springs  

Council Chambers, 511 Mercer St, Dripping Springs, TX  

Tuesday, December 28, 2021 at 6:30 PM  

Agenda 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Commission Members 
Mim James, Chair 

James Martin, Vice Chair 

Christian Bourguignon 

Doug Crosson 

John McIntosh 

Evelyn Strong 

Tammie Williamson 

Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials 
City Administrator Michelle Fischer 

Deputy City Administrator Ginger Faught 

City Attorney Laura Mueller 

City Secretary Andrea Cunningham 

Planning Director Howard Koontz 

Senior Planner Tory Carpenter 

Planning Assistant Warlan Rivera 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Commission regarding any item on an agenda for an 

open meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during 

the Commission’s consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the 

current agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are 

allowed two (2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers 

may not cede or pool time. Members of the public requiring the assistance of a translator will be given 

twice the amount of time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to 

address the Commission. It is the request of the Commission that members of the public wishing to speak 

on item(s) on the agenda with a noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented 

for consideration. Speakers are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City’s policy on 

presentation of citizens from the city secretary. By law no action may be taken during Presentation of 

Citizens. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items are anticipated to require little or no individualized discussion due to their nature 

being clerical, ministerial, mundane or routine. In an effort to enhance the efficiency of Planning & 

Zoning Commission meetings, it is intended that these items will be acted upon by the Planning & Zoning 

1



Commission with a single motion because no public hearing or determination is necessary. However, a 

Planning & Zoning Commission Member or citizen may request separate deliberation for a specific item, 

in which event those items will be removed from the consent agenda prior to the Planning & Zoning 

Commission voting on the consent agenda as a collective, singular item. Prior to voting on the consent 

agenda, the Planning & Zoning Commission may add additional items that are listed elsewhere on the 

same agenda. 

1. Approval of the December 14, 2021, Planning & Zoning Commission regular meeting 

minutes. 

2. Approval of SUB2021-0054: an application for Driftwood Phase 2 Final Plat for a 19.30 

acre tract located along the west side of Thurman Roberts Way north of its intersection 

with RM 1826 out of the Freelove Woody Survey, Abstract 20. Applicant: Tory Miller, 

P.E., Murfee Engineering Company 

BUSINESS 

3. Public hearing and consideration of a recommendation regarding ZA2021-0011 an 

application to consider an ordinance approving a zoning amendment from Single 

Family- Low Density (SF-1) to General Retail (GR) for approximately 10.00 acres out of 

the Phillip A. Smith Survey located at 26700 Ranch Road 12. Applicant: Jon Thompson 

a. Presentation 

b. Staff Report 

c. Public Hearing 

d. Zoning Amendment 

4. Public hearing and consideration of recommendation regarding VAR2021-0022: 

an application for Special Exception to allow the expansion of a nonconforming 

structure  located at 102 Bluff Street, Dripping Springs, Texas. Applicant: Joe Grasso, 

P.E.; Doucet & Associates. 

a. Presentation 

b. Staff Report 

c. Public Hearing 

d. Special Exception  

5. Public hearing and consideration of recommendation regarding CUP2021-0006: 

an application for a Conditional Use Permit for an accessory dwelling unit at 106 Bonnie 

Drive, Dripping Springs, Texas. Applicant: Todd Larsen 

a. Presentation 

b. Staff Report 

c. Public Hearing 

d. Conditional Use Permit 

6. Discuss and consider possible action regarding the Planning & Zoning Commission 

meeting schedule for November and December 2022 meetings. 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT REPORTS 

2



7. Approved Projects Report. 

8. Planning Department Report 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Planning & Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to  discuss any matter as authorized by 

Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney),  551.072 (Deliberations about 

Real Property), 551.073 Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 Personnel Matters), 551.076 

(Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic Development). The Planning & Zoning 

Commission for the City of Dripping Springs may act on any item listed in Executive Session in Open 

Session or move any item from Executive Session to Open Session for action. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
January 11, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

January 25, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

February 8, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

February 22, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

City Council & Board of Adjustment Meetings 
January 4, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. (CC & BOA) 

January 11, 2022, at 5:00 p.m. (Exceptions & Waivers) 

January 18, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. (CC) 

January 25, 2022, at 5:00 p.m. (Exceptions & Waivers) 

February 1, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. (CC & BOA) 

February 8, 2022, at 5:00 p.m. (Exceptions & Waivers) 

February 15, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. (CC) 

February 22, 2022, at 5:00 p.m. (Exceptions & Waivers) 

ADJOURN 

TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT PUBLIC NOTIFICATION & POSTING OF MEETING 

All agenda items listed above are eligible for discussion and action unless otherwise specifically 

noted.  This notice of meeting is posted in accordance with Chapter 551, Government Code, Vernon's 

Texas Codes. Annotated.  In addition, the Commission may consider a vote to excuse the absence of any 

Commissioner for absence from this meeting. 

I certify that this notice of meeting was posted at the City of Dripping Springs City Hall and website, 

www.cityofdrippingsprings.com, on December 23, 2021, at 10:30 a.m. 

 

 
City Secretary 

 

This facility is wheelchair accessible. Accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for auxiliary aids and 

services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting by calling (512) 858-4725. 

3



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  December 14, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 4 

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 

City of Dripping Springs 

Council Chambers, 511 Mercer St, Dripping Springs, TX 

Tuesday, December 14, 2021 at 6:30 PM 

MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

With a quorum of the Commission present, Chair James called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. 

Commission Members present were: 
Mim James, Chair 

Christian Bourguignon 

Doug Crosson 

John McIntosh 

Evelyn Strong (arrived at 6:32 p.m.) 

Tammie Williamson 

Commission Members absent was: 

James Martin, Vice Chair 

Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials present were: 
City Attorney Laura Mueller 

Planning Director Howard Koontz 

Senior Planner Tory Carpenter 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Williamson led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Commission regarding any item on an agenda for an 

open meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during 

the Commission’s consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the 

current agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are 

allowed two (2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers 

may not cede or pool time. Members of the public requiring the assistance of a translator will be given 

twice the amount of time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to 

address the Commission. It is the request of the Commission that members of the public wishing to speak 

on item(s) on the agenda with a noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented 

for consideration. Speakers are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City’s policy on 

presentation of citizens from the city secretary. By law no action may be taken during Presentation of 

Citizens. 

 

4

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  December 14, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 4 

No one spoke during Presentation of Citizens. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items are anticipated to require little or no individualized discussion due to their nature 

being clerical, ministerial, mundane or routine. In an effort to enhance the efficiency of Planning & 

Zoning Commission meetings, it is intended that these items will be acted upon by the Planning & Zoning 

Commission with a single motion because no public hearing or determination is necessary. However, a 

Planning & Zoning Commission Member or citizen may request separate deliberation for a specific item, 

in which event those items will be removed from the consent agenda prior to the Planning & Zoning 

Commission voting on the consent agenda as a collective, singular item. Prior to voting on the consent 

agenda, the Planning & Zoning Commission may add additional items that are listed elsewhere on the 

same agenda. 

 

Via unanimous consent, the Commission considered Consent Agenda items individually. 

1. Discuss and consider approval of the November 23, 2021, Planning & Zoning 

Commission regular meeting minutes. 

 

A motion was made by Commissioner McIntosh to approve the November 23, 2021, Planning 

& Zoning Commission regular meeting minutes. Commissioner Williamson seconded the 

motion which carried 3 to 0 to 3, with Commissioners Strong, Bourguignon and Crosson 

abstaining. 

 

2. Approval of SUB2020-0030: an application for Caliterra Phase 4 Section 12 Preliminary 

Plat for a 64.964 acre tract located near Ranch Road 12 and Hog Hollow Road out of 

the Philip A. Smith Survey. Applicant: Bill Couch, Carlson Brigance, and Doering Inc.  

 

A motion was made by Commissioner Williamson to approve SUB2020-0030: an application 

for Caliterra Phase 4 Section 12 Preliminary Plat for a 64.964 acre tract located near Ranch 

Road 12 and Hog Hollow Road out of the Philip A. Smith Survey. Commissioner Strong 

seconded the motion which carried unanimously 5 to 0. 

 

3. Disapproval of SUB2021-0054: an application for Driftwood Phase 2 Final Plat for a 

19.30 acre tract located along the west side of Thurman Roberts Way north of its 

intersection with RM 1826 out of the Freelove Woody Survey, Abstract 20. Applicant: 

Tory Miller, P.E., Murphee Engineering Company 

 

A motion was made by Commissioner Bourguignon to deny approval of SUB2021-0054: an 

application for Driftwood Phase 2 Final Plat for a 19.30 acre tract located along the west side 

of Thurman Roberts Way north of its intersection with RM 1826 out of the Freelove Woody 

Survey, Abstract 20. Commissioner McIntosh seconded the motion which carried 5 to 0 to 1, 

with Commissioner Crosson abstaining. 

 

4. Approval of SUB2021-0060: an application for Parten Ranch Phase 6 & 7 Preliminary 

Plat for a 129.0 acre tract located on Parten Ranch Parkway near Running Bird Road 

out of the Seaborn J. Whatley and Lamar Moore Surveys. Applicant: Dan Ryan, LJA 

Engineering 

 

5

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  December 14, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 4 

A motion was made by Commissioner McIntosh to approve SUB2021-0060: an application 

for Parten Ranch Phase 6 & 7 Preliminary Plat for a 129.0 acre tract located on Parten Ranch 

Parkway near Running Bird Road out of the Seaborn J. Whatley and Lamar Moore Surveys. 

Commissioner Crosson seconded the motion which caried unanimously 6 to 0. 

BUSINESS 

5. Public hearing and consideration of a recommendation regarding ZA2021-0005 an 

application to consider a proposed zoning map amendment from Single Family- Low 

Density (SF-1) to Manufactured Home (MH) for approximately 2.279 acres out of the 

Phillip A. Smith Survey located at 910 Creek Road. Applicant: Jon Thompson 

 

a. Presentation – Sumer Scott presented an overview of the project. 

 

b. Staff Report – Tory Carpenter presented the staff report which is on file. Staff 

recommends approval of the zoning amendment as presented. 

 

c. Public Hearing – No one spoke during Presentation of Citizens. 

 

d. Zoning Amendment – A motion was made by Commissioner Strong to recommend 

City Council approval of ZA2021-0005 an application to consider a proposed zoning map 

amendment from Single Family- Low Density (SF-1) to Manufactured Home (MH) for 

approximately 2.279 acres out of the Phillip A. Smith Survey located at 910 Creek Road. 

Commissioner Bourguignon seconded the motion which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 

6. Discuss and consider approval to change the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting 

start time to 6:00 p.m. 

 A motion was made by Commissioner McIntosh to change the Planning & Zoning 

Commission meeting start time to 6:00 p.m. Commissioner McIntosh seconded the motion 

which caried 5 to 1 to 0, with Commissioner Strong opposed. 

 6:00 p.m. meetings will start January 2022. 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT REPORTS 

7. Planning Department Report – Howard Koontz presented the report which is on file. 

8. Report on Moratorium Exceptions & Waivers – Laura Mueller presented the report 

which his on file. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Planning & Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to  discuss any matter as authorized by 

Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney),  551.072 (Deliberations about 

Real Property), 551.073 Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 Personnel Matters), 551.076 

(Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic Development). The Planning & Zoning 

Commission for the City of Dripping Springs may act on any item listed in Executive Session in Open 

Session or move any item from Executive Session to Open Session for action. 

6

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  December 14, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 4 

The Commission did not meet in Executive Session. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
December 28, 2021, at 6:30 p.m. 

January 11, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. 

January 25, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council Meetings & Board of Adjustment Meetings 
December 14, 2021, at 5:00 p.m. (Waiver/Exception) 

December 21, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. (Regular) 

December 28, 2021, at 5:00 p.m. (Waiver/Exception) 

January 4, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. (Regular/BOA) 

ADJOURN 

A motion was made by Commissioner Strong to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Bourguignon 

seconded the motion which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 

This regular meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 

7

Item 1.



8

Item 2.



9

Item 2.



10

Item 2.



11

Item 2.



12

Item 2.



13

Item 2.



14

Item 2.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



15

Item 2.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



18

Item 2.



19

Item 2.



 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 

P&Z Meeting: December 28, 2021 

Project Number:  SUB2021-0054 

Project Planner: Tory Carpenter, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Driftwood Subdivision Phase 2 Final Plat 

Property Location:   Thurman Roberts Way 

Legal Description:  19.30 acres out of the Freelove Woody Survey, Abstract 20 

Applicant: Murfee Engineering Company, Inc.  

Property Owner: Driftwood DLC Investors I, LP  

Request: A residential final plat.   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
20

Item 2.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Overview 

 

The applicant is requesting approval of a final plat consisting of 18 residential lots. This plat is consistent with the approved 

preliminary plat. 

 

 

Action Requested 

 

Approval 
 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

The subject property is located at 214 Thurman Roberts Way, generally located north of FM 1826, east of FM 150, and 

south of Onion Creek.  

 

Zoning Designation:  ETJ 

 

Property History  

The preliminary plat was approved March 30, 2021. The surety bond was approved September 21, 2021.  

 

Recommendation 

 

Staff is recommending approval.  

 
Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Plat 

Exhibit 2 - Application 

 

Recommended Action: Approval.  

 

Budget/Financial Impact:    All fees have been paid.  

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

21

Item 2.



22

Item 2.



23

Item 2.



24

Item 2.



Planning & Zoning Commission 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

Project Name: Burke Zoning Amendment 

Property Location: 26700 Ranch Road 12. 

Legal Description: 10 acres out of the Philip A Smith Survey 

Applicant: Jon Thompson 

Property Owner: Burke Family Revocable Trust 

Request: Zoning amendment from Manufactured Home “SF-1” to  

 General Retail “GR” 

Staff Recommendation:  Disapproval 

 

  

Planning & Zoning 

Commission: December 28, 2021 

Project No:  ZA2021-0011 

Project Planner:  Tory Carpenter, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

25

Item 3.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                                                 

ZA2021-0010 

 
Background 

The property is currently zoned SF-1, single-family low density  

 

Per Ch. 30 Exhibit A, §3.3 

 SF-1 – Single-family residential district – Low Density: The SF-1, single-family residential 

district is intended to provide for development of low-density, detached, single-family residences 

on lots of at least one acre in size. 

 

The applicant is requesting a zoning amendment to GR; General Retail 

 GR – General Retail: The GR, general retail district is established to provide areas for retail 

facilities that are larger than those generally located in the local retail district, such as large 

grocery stores, book stores, and the like. Areas zoned for general retail should have convenient 

regional access via major thoroughfares, such as U.S. Highway 290 or Ranch Road 12, and major 

collector streets are primary locational considerations. Hotel/motel uses, community scale retail, 

and bed-and-breakfasts are permitted within general retail districts. Office uses, commercial 

services, and industrial uses shall not be permitted. 

 

Analysis 

Based on the adjacent zoning category and land uses, staff finds that the proposed zoning is not consistent 

with the surrounding area given the allowable uses in the “GR” zoning district. Additionally, the future land 

use map of the comprehensive plan does not provide guidance on envisioned uses and development patterns 

in this area.  

The following are the development regulations for the current and proposed zoning districts for the site.  

 SF-1 GR Differences between MH to 

GR 

Max Height 1.5 Story / 40 feet. 2 stories / 40 feet One Story / 20 feet. 

Min. Lot Size 43560-sq-ft 20,000-sq-ft 23,560-sq-ft less 

Min. Lot Width N/A 100 feet 100 feet more 

Min. Lot Depth 100 feet 150 feet 50 feet 

Min. 

Front/Side/Rear 

Yard Setbacks 

25 feet / 15 feet / 25 

feet 

25 feet / 25 feet / 25 

feet* 
0 feet / 10 feet more / 1 feet * 

Impervious Cover 30% 60% 30% more 

 

*Adjacent to a single-family district: Any retail use that is located adjacent to (and not across a right-of-

way from) any single-family zoning district shall be set back from the applicable residential district 

property line by 40 feet. 

  

26

Item 3.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                                                 

ZA2021-0010 

 
 

Surrounding Properties 

 

  

 

The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are 

outlined in the table below:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Future Land Use 

North ETJ Agricultural 

Not Shown on the 

Future Land Use 

Map 

East SF-1 
Single-Family 

Residence 

South O 
Presbyterian 

Church 

West SF-1 / MF 
Single Family / 

Vacant  

27

Item 3.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                                                 

ZA2021-0010 

 
Approval Criteria for Zoning Amendment (Chapter 30 Zoning, Exhibit A, Sec 2.28.1 and 2.28.2) 

 

2.28.2 The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council shall consider the following factors: 

 

Factors Staff Comments 

1. whether the proposed change will be 

appropriate in the immediate area 

concerned; 

Staff has concerns regarding potential adverse 

impacts of a variety of uses allowed in this 

zoning district.  This concerns stem 

particularly from adjacent single-family 

residences.  

2. their relationship to the general area and 

the City as a whole; 

This property has significant frontage on 

Ranch Road 12. This major road has a 

number of commercial use in the immediate 

vicinity  

3. whether the proposed change is in accord 

with any existing or proposed plans for 

providing public schools, streets, water 

supply, sanitary sewers, and other utilities 

to the area; 

The property is not within any existing or 

proposed City Plans.  

4. the amount of undeveloped land currently 

classified for similar development in the 

vicinity and elsewhere in the City, and any 

special circumstances which may make a 

substantial part of such undeveloped land 

unavailable for development; 

This request would not make other land 

unavailable for development.   

5. the recent rate at which land is being 

developed in the same zoning 

classification, particularly in the vicinity 

of the proposed change; 

While there has been limited commercial 

development in the immediate vicinity, there 

has been significant growth within the City as 

a whole. 

6. how other areas designated for similar 

development will be, or are unlikely to be, 

affected if the proposed amendment is 

approved; 

No areas designated for similar development 

would be affected by this proposed 

amendment.  

7. whether the proposed change treats the 

subject parcel of land in a manner which is 

significantly different from decisions 

made involving other, similarly situated 

parcels; and 

There have not been recent similarly situated 

properties that have received a zoning 

amendment to GR. 

8. any other factors which will substantially 

affect the public health, safety, morals, or 

general welfare. 

The unusual configuration of the lot could 

cause issues when developing the property.  

 

  

28

Item 3.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                                                 

ZA2021-0010 

 
Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends disapproval of the zoning amendment as presented. 

Planning and Zoning action: 

2.34.1     The P&Z shall hold a public hearing on a zoning an amendment to the Zoning 

Ordinance. After all public input has been received and the public hearing closed, the P&Z shall 

make its recommendations on the proposed zoning request and concept plan, if submitted, stating 

its findings, its overall evaluation of the request, and its assessment regarding how the request 

relates to the City's Comprehensive Plan. The P&Z may, on its own motion or at the applicant's 

request, defer its decision recommendations until it has had an opportunity to consider other 

information or proposed modifications to the request which may have a direct bearing thereon. If 

the P&Z elects to postpone or defer its hearing on the request, such action shall specifically state 

the time period of the postponement by citing the meeting date whereon the request will reappear 

on the P&Z's agenda. 

 

2.34.2     When the P&Z is ready to act upon the zoning request, it may recommend: 

 

(a)     approval of the request as it was submitted by the applicant; 

 

(b)     approval of the request subject to certain conditions as in the case of a Planned 

Development District (PDD) or a Conditional Use Permit (CUP); or 

 

(c)     disapproval of the request. 

 

2.34.3     The P&Z's recommendation will be automatically forwarded to the City Council for a 

second public hearing thereon. 

 

Public Notification 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs 

were posted on the-site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot 

radius of the site were notified of the zoning map amendment. To date, no letters for or against the request 

have been received.  

Attachments 

Exhibit 1 – Zoning Amendment Application 

Exhibit 2 – Use Chart 

Recommended Action: Recommend disapproval of the requested Zoning Amendment 

Alternatives/Options: Recommend denial of the zoning map amendment. 

Budget/Financial Impact: All fees have been paid. 

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 
 

29

Item 3.



APPENDIX E: ZONING USE REGULATIONS (CHARTS) 

E.1     Use Regulations (Charts) 

E.1.1.     The use of land or buildings shall be in accordance with those listed in the following Use 

Charts. No land or building shall hereafter be used and no building or structure shall be erected, altered, 

or converted other than for those uses specified in the zoning district in which it is located. 

(a)     The legend for interpreting the permitted uses in the Use Charts is: 

P Designates that the use is permitted in the zoning district indicated. 

    

  Designates that the use is prohibited in the zoning district indicated. 

    

C Designates that the use may be permitted in the zoning district only 

pursuant to issuance of a Conditional Use Permit. 

    

** Designates that the use is defined in this Chapter. 

(b)     Definitions: See Definitions in Section 1.6 of this Chapter for further description of uses. 

(c)     Uses Not Listed: If a use is not listed in the Use Charts, it is not allowed in any zoning district. 

(d)     Use Chart Organization: The following use categories are listed in the Use Charts: 

Agricultural Uses 

Residential Uses 

Office Uses 

Personal and Business Service Uses 

Retail Uses 

Transportation and Auto Service Uses 

Amusement and Recreational Service Uses 

Institutional/Governmental Uses 

Commercial and Wholesale Trade Uses 

Manufacturing and Light Industrial Uses 

E.1.2.     Standards for New and Unlisted Uses: Standards for new and unlisted uses may be interpreted 

by the City Administrator as those of a similar use. When a determination of the appropriate zoning 

district cannot be readily ascertained, the same criteria outlined below (in Subsection E.1.3) shall be 30

Item 3.



followed for determination of the appropriate district. The decision of the City Administrator or City 

Administrator’s designee may be appealed by the applicant according to the process for appeals for 

zoning change requests outlined herein. 

E.1.3.     Classification of New and Unlisted Uses: It is recognized that new types of land use will 

develop, and forms of land use not presently anticipated may seek to locate in the City of Dripping 

Springs. In order to provide for such changes and contingencies, a determination as to the appropriate 

classification of any new or unlisted form of land use in the Use Charts shall be made as follows: 

(a)     Initiation: A person, City department, the P&Z, or the City Council may propose zoning 

amendments to regulate new and previously unlisted uses. 

(b)     A person requesting the addition of a new or unlisted use, in writing, shall submit to the City 

Administrator all information necessary for the classification of the use including, but not limited to, the 

following: 

1.     The nature of the use and whether the use involves dwelling activity, sales, services, or 

processing; 

2.     The type of product sold or produced under the use; 

3.     Whether the use has enclosed or open storage and the amount and nature of the storage; 

4.     Anticipated employment typically anticipated with the use; 

5.     Transportation requirements; 

6.     The nature and time of occupancy and operation of the premises; 

7.     The off-street parking and loading requirements; 

8.     The amount of noise, odor, fumes, dust, toxic materials and vibration likely to be generated; and 

9.     The requirements for public utilities such as sanitary sewer and water and any special public 

services that may be required. 

(c)     Recommendation of Zoning Classification: The City Administrator shall refer the question 

concerning any new or unlisted use to the P&Z requesting a recommendation as to the zoning 

classification into which such use should be placed. The referral of the use interpretation question shall 

be accompanied by the statement of facts. 

(d)     Consideration by the P&Z: The P&Z shall consider the nature and described performance of the 

proposed use and its compatibility with the uses permitted in the various districts and determine the 

zoning district or districts within which such use is most similar and should be permitted. The P&Z shall 

submit its findings and recommendations to the City Council as to the classification proposed for any 

new or unlisted use. 

(e)     Consideration by the City Council: The City Council shall approve or disapprove the 

recommendation of the P&Z or make such determination concerning the classification of such use as is 31

Item 3.



determined appropriate based upon its findings. 

Use Chart 

Permitted Uses “P” 

Conditional Uses “C" 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

AGRICULTURE AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Bulk Grain and/or Feed 

Storage 
P                   X P       

Farms, General (Crops), 

Commercial 
P C C               X         

Greenhouse (Non-Retail) P P P P             P         

Livestock Sales P                   X         

Orchard/Crop 

Propagation 
P P C C C C C C C C P C       

Plant Nursery 

(Commercial) 
P               P P X C       

Small Scale Farm P C C     C C C C C P         

Stable, Commercial P C                 X         

Stables (Private, 

accessory use) 
P C C               P         

Stables (Private, principal 

use) 
P C                 X         

Garden (Non-Retail) P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Farm Animals (Exempt - 

FFA, 4H) 
P C C C C C C C C C P C       

Farm Animals (Non-

Exempt) 
P C C C C C C C C C P C       

 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

RESIDENTIAL AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Accessory Bldg/Structure 

(Nonresidential) 
            P P P P P P       

Accessory Bldg/Structure 

(Residential) 
P P P P P P         P         

Accessory Dwelling P C C               P   P     

Caretaker’s/Guard P P P               P         32

Item 3.



Residence 

Community or Group 

Home 
C C C C C           P         

Duplex/Two-Family       P P P P P P   P         

Garage Residential 

Conversion 
P P C C             P         

Garden Home/Townhome         P P P P P   P         

Home Occupation P P P P P P P P P   P         

HUD-Code Manufactured 

Home 
C     C C C         X         

Living Quarters on Site 

with a Business 
            P P P P P         

Multiple-Family 

Dwelling 
          P P P P   P         

Residential Loft             P P P   P         

Rooming/Boarding House           P   P     P         
 

Single-Family Dwelling, 

Detached 
P P P P P P         P         

Single-Family 

Industrialized Housing 
P P P P P P         P         

Swimming Pool, Private P P P P P P P P P   P         
 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15; Ordinance 2019-44 adopted 12/10/19) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

OFFICE AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Armed Services 

Recruiting Center 
            P P P P P         

Bank                   C X         

Check Cashing Service               P P P X         

Credit Agency             P P P P X         

Insurance Agency Offices             P P P P P         

Offices, 

General/Professional 
            P P P P P         

Office, Brokerage 

Services 
            P P P P P         

Offices, Health Services             P P P P P         
33

Item 3.



Offices, Legal Services             P P P P P         

Offices, Parole/Probation                     X   P     

Offices, Professional             P P P P P         

Offices, Real Estate 

Office 
            P P P P P         

Saving & Loan                   C X         

Security Monitoring 

Company 
            P P P P X         

Telemarketing Center             P P P P X         
 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

PERSONAL & 

BUSINESS SERVICES 
AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO* I GUI PR PP 

All-Terrain Vehicle                 P P X         

Dealer (Sales Only)                     X         

Ambulance Service 

(Private) 
                  P X         

Antique Shop               P P P P         

Appliance Repair               P P P X         

Art Dealer/Gallery               P P P P         

Artisan’s Shop P             P P P P         

Artist Studio P P P P P P P P P P P         

Auto Sales (New & Used)                 C P X         

Auto Supply Store                 P P X         

Bakery or Confectionary 

(Retail) 
              P P P P         

Bar               C C C C         

Barbershop               P P P P         

Beauty Shop               P P P P         

Bed & Breakfast Inn or 

Facility 
C C C         P P P P         

Bicycle Sales and Repair               P P P P         

34

Item 3.



Book Store               P P P P         

Building Materials Sales                 C P X         
 

Cabinet/Counter/ 

Woodworking Shop 
(Custom) Retail 

                  C X P       

Cabinet/Counter/ 

Woodworking Shop 

(Manufacturing) 
Wholesale 

                    X P       

Cafeteria             C C P P P         

Communication 

Equipment Repair 
                  P X         

Computer Sales               P P P P         

Consignment Shop               P P P P         

Convenience Store (With 

Gas Sales) 
                P P X         

Convenience Store 

(Without Gas Sales) 
              C P P P         

Cooking School               P P P P         

Dance/Drama/Music 

Studio or School 
              P P P P         

Department Store                 P P P         

Drapery, Blind 

Upholstery Store 
              P P P P         

Exterminator Services                   P X         

Financial Services               P P P P         

Florist Shop               P P P P         

Food or Grocery Store 

(General) 
                P P P         

Food or Grocery Store 

(Limited) 
              P P P P         

Funeral Home or 

Mortuary 
                  P X         

Furniture Store (New 

and/or Used) 
              P P P X         

Garden Shop (Inside 

Storage) 
              P P P P         

General or Community                 P P P         35

Item 3.



Retail Store 

Gravestone/Tombstone 

Sales 
                  P X         

Hardware Store               P P P P         

Home Improvement 

Center 
                P P X         

Laundry/Dry Cleaning                   P X         

Lawnmower Sales 

&Repair 
                P P X         

Live-in Security Quarters             P P P P P         

Locksmith               P P P X         

Major Appliance Sales                 P P X         

Market (Public)               P P P P         

Mini-Warehouse - Self 

Storage 
                  C X         

 

Mobile food vendor - 10 

days or less 
            P P P P P P P P P 

Mobile food vendor - 

longer than 10 days 
            C C C C C C C     

Mobile food vendor court             C C C C C C C     

Motorcycle Dealer (Sales, 

Repair) 
                P P X         

Motel or Hotel                 P P P         

Needlework Shop               P P P P         

Pet Shop/Supplies               P P P P         

Pharmacy               P P P P         

Photocopying/Duplicating               P P P P         

Photography Studio               P P P P         

Plant Nursery (Retail 

Sales, Outdoors) 
                P P X         

Radio or Television 

Studio 
                P P X         

Recycling Center                   C X P       

Restaurant (No Drive-

Through Service) 
              P P P P         

36

Item 3.



Restaurant (With Drive-

Through) 
                P P X         

Security Systems 

Installation Company 
                C P X         

Sexually Oriented 

Business 
                  C X C       

Shoe Repair               P P P P         

Studio, Tattoo or Body 

Piercing 
              C C C P         

Tailor Shop               P P P P         

Tool & Machinery Rental 

(Indoor Storage) 
              P P P X         

Tool & Machinery Rental 

(Outdoor Storage) 
                  P X         

Travel Agency             P P P P P         

Temporary Outdoor 

Sales/Promotion 
            C P P P P         

Upholstery Shop                 P P P         

Used Merchandise/ 

Furniture 
              P P P P         

Vacuum Cleaner Sales & 

Repair 
              P P P X         

Veterinarian Clinic 

(Indoor Kennels) 
              P P P P         

Woodworking Shop 

(Ornamental, Handmade 
              P P P P         

 

* Permitted in HO District per requirements of Chapter 30, Article 30.05: Mobile Food Vendors. 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15; Ordinance 1220.149 adopted 11/14/17; Ordinance 2018-09 adopted 4/10/18) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

TRANSPORTATION & 

AUTO SERVICES 
AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Antique Vehicle 

Restoration 
                  P X         

Auto Body Repair                   P X         

Auto Financing & 

Leasing 
              P P P X         

Auto Muffler Shop                   P X         

Auto Paint Shop                   P X         
 

37

Item 3.



Auto Tire Sales & Repair                 P P X         

Auto Upholstery Shop                   P X         

Auto Washing Facility, 

Attended 
                P P X         

Auto Washing Facility, 

Unattended 
                P P X         

Auto Wrecker Service                   P X         

Automobile Repair, 

Major 
                  P X         

Automobile Repair, 

Minor 
              C C P X         

Heliport                       P P     

Helistop                       P P     

Limousine/Taxi Service                   P X         

Oil Change & Inspection                 P P X         

Parking Lot, Commercial                   C           

Parking Structure, 

Commercial 
            C C C P P         

Tire Dealer, Indoor 

Storage 
              P P P X         

 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15; Ordinance 1220.140, att. B, adopted 4/11/17; Ordinance 1220.151 adopted 12/12/17) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

AMUSEMENT/ 

RECREATION 
AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Amusement Arcade (Four 

or more devices) 
                P P P         

Amusement Services 

(Indoor) 
                P P P         

Amusement Services 

(Outdoor) 
                P P X         

Billiard/Pool Facility                 P P P         

Bingo Hall                 P P P     P   

Bowling Center                 P P P     P   

Broadcast Station (With 

Tower) 
                    X P       

38

Item 3.



Country Club (Private)                 P   X         

Dance Hall                 P P P     P   

Day Camp for Children C C         C   P P           

Civic/Conference Center                     P   P     

Dinner Theater                 P P P         

Driving Range                           P   

Fairgrounds/Exhibition 

Area 
C                         P   

Gaming Club (private)               C C C           

Golf Course (Miniature)                 P P       P   

Golf Course (Public, 

Private) 
C               P P       P   

Health Club             C P P P P     P   

Motion-Picture Studio, 

Commercial 
                  P   P       

Motion-Picture Theater                 P P P         

Museum               P P P P         

Park accessory uses                             P 

Park and/or Playground P P P P P P P P P P P       P 

Psychic Reading Services               P P P P         
 

Rodeo Grounds C                 C   C       

Skating Rink                   P       P   

Tennis Court P P P P P P         P     P   

Theater (Stage)                 P P P     P   

Video Rentals/Sales               P P P P         
 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15; Ordinance 2020-01 adopted 1/14/20) 

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

INSTITUTIONAL/ 

GOVERNMENT 
AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Assisted Living Facility           C   C C C P         

Broadcast Tower 

(Commercial) 
                      C       

39

Item 3.



Cemetery or Mausoleum C                       P     

Child Day-Care Facility C C C C C C C P P P P         

Church, Religious 

Assembly 
P P P P P P P P P P P   P     

Civic Club             P P P P P         

Community Center 

(Municipal) 
                    P   P     

Electrical Generating 

Plant 
                      P P     

Electrical Substation                       P P     

Emergency Care Clinic                 P P           

Fire Station P P P P P P P P P P     P     

Fraternal Lodge or Union             P P P P P         

Government Building 

(Mun, St, Fed) 
                  P P   P     

Group Day-Care Home C C C C C C C P P P           

Medical Clinic or Office             P P P P P         

Wireless 

Communications Tower 
C C C     C C C C C   C       

Heliport                       P       

Home for the Aged, 

Residential 
C C C C C C C C P P P         

Hospice               C P P P         

Hospital (Acute Care, 

General) 
            C C P P           

Library             P P P P P   P     

Maternity Home             C C P P P         

Nursing/Convalescent 

Home 
            C C P P           

Orphanage           C C C P P P         

Philanthropic 

Organization 
            P P P P P         

Post Office P P P P P P P P P P P   P     

Radio, Television, 

Microwave Tower 
                C C   C       

40

Item 3.



School, K Through 12 

(public or private) 
P P P P P P P P P P P   P     

Sewage Pumping Station C C C C C C C C C C P P P     

Telephone Switching/ 

Exchange Bldg. 
            C C C P P   P     

 

Wastewater Treatment 

Plant 
C C C C C C C C C C   C P     

Water Supply (Elevated 

Storage Tank) 
C C C C C C C C C C P C P     

Water Supply Facility 

(Private) 
P P P P P P   C C C   C P     

 

  

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

COMM. & 

WHOLESALE TRADE 
AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Book Bindery                   P P         

Feed & Grain Store                 P P           

Furniture Manufacture                       P       

Heating & Air-

Conditioning 
Sales/Service 

                P P           

Pawnshop                 C C           

Propane Sales (Retail)                   P           

Taxidermist                   P           

Transfer Station/Refuse 

Pickup 
                      P       

Veterinarian (Outdoor 

Kennels or Pens) 
C                 P           

Warehouse/Office                   C   P       

Welding Shop                   C   P       
 

  

  Residential Uses Nonresidential Uses 

LIGHT 

INDUSTRIAL/MFG. 
AG SF-1 SF-2 SF-4 SF-5 MF-1 O LR GR CS HO I GUI PR PP 

Contractor’s Office (No 

Outside Storage. 
              P P P P P       

41

Item 3.



Contractor’s Office (with 

Outside Storage) 
                  C   P       

Contractor’s Temporary 

On-site Office 
C C C C C C C C C C P C       

Electronic Assembly                   C   P       

Engine Repair or 

Manufacture 
                      P       

Laboratory Equipment 

Manufacture 
                      P       

Machine Shop                       P       

Maintenance & Repair 

Services for Bldgs. 
                  P           

Open Storage/Outside 

Storage 
C                 C   P       

Plumbing Shop                 P P           

Research Lab 

(Nonhazardous) 
                C C   P       

Sand/Gravel/Stone Sales 

or Storage 
C                 C   P       

 

Sand/Gravel Quarrying                       C       

Sign Manufacturing                   C P P       

Stone/Clay/Glass 

Manufacturing 
                  C   P       

 

(Ordinance 1220.99 adopted 2/17/15) 

42

Item 3.



City of Dripping Springs 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 

Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com 

 

Revised 11.30.2018   Page 1 of 4 
 
 

ZONING/PDD AMENDMENT APPLICATION 
 
 

 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

PROPERTY OWNER NAME____________________________________________________________________ 

STREET ADDRESS_________________________________________________________ 

CITY_______________________________STATE____________________ ZIP CODE _________________  

PHONE________________________ EMAIL________________________ 

 

APPLICANT NAME____________________________________________________________________ 

COMPANY _______________________________________________________________ 

STREET ADDRESS_________________________________________________________ 

CITY_______________________________STATE____________________ ZIP CODE _________________  

PHONE________________________ EMAIL________________________ 

 
  
 

Case Number (staff use only): ________-____ 

REASONS FOR AMENDMENT  

 ☐ TO CORRECT ANY ERROR IN THE REGULATION 
OR MAP 

 ☐ TO RECOGNIZE CHANGES IN TECHNOLOGY, STYLE 
OF LIVING, OR MANNER OF CONDUCTING BUSINESS 

 

 ☐ TO RECOGNIZE CHANGED CONDITIONS OR 
CIRCUMSTANCES IN A PARTICULAR LOCALITY 

 
☐ TO MAKE CHANGES IN ORDER TO IMPLEMENT 
POLICIES REFLECTED WITHIN THE COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN 

 

Burke Family Revocable Trust

26700 Ranch Road 12

Dripping Springs Texas 78620

Jon Thompson

J Thompson Professional Consulting, LLC

PO Box 172

Dripping Springs Texas 78620

(512) 568-2184 jthompsonconsultingds@gmail.com

43

Item 3.



PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 
512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 

COMPLIANCE WITH OUTDOOR LIGHTING ORDINANCE? * 
(See attached agreement). 

☐ YES (REQUIRED)* ☐ YES (VOLUNTARY)* ☐ NO* 
 
* If proposed subdivision is in the City Limits, compliance with Lighting Ordinance is mandatory. If proposed 
subdivision is in the ETJ, compliance is mandatory when required by a Development Agreement or as a 
condition of an Alternative Standard/Special Exception/Variance/Waiver.  
Voluntary compliance is strongly encouraged by those not required by above criteria (see Outdoor Lighting tab 
on the CODS webpage and online Lighting Ordinance under Code of Ordinances tab for more information). 
  

PROPERTY & ZONING INFORMATION 

PROPERTY OWNER NAME  

PROPERTY ADDRESS   

CURRENT LEGAL DESCRIPTION  

TAX ID#  

LOCATED IN ☐ CITY LIMITS    

☐ EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION  

CURRENT ZONING  

REQUESTED 
ZONING/AMENDMENT TO PDD 

 

REASON FOR REQUEST 
(Attach extra sheet if necessary) 

 

INFORMATION ABOUT 
PROPOSED USES 
(Attach extra sheet if necessary) 

 

Burke Family Revocable Trust

26700 Ranch Road 12

ABS 415 9-3106-01-15 PHILIP A SMITH SURVEY 10.00 AC 

R17787

SF-1

GR

Proposed development would be for commercial development. 
Since the property is currently zoned for single family low residential, 
the zoning as it is and as situated along a secondary highway in the 
City, the more appropriate zoning is commercial zoning. As CS is 
most appropriate for Hwy 290; the secondary zoning of GR is more 
appropriate for the secondary highway of RR12. 

The proposed use would be uses that are permitted uses in GR. It is 
envisioned that the use would likely be something of an office or retail use. 

44

Item 3.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


45

Item 3.



PHYSICAL: 5 1 1 M ercer S treet •  MAILING: PO B ox 3 8 4  •  D ri p p i n g S p ri n g s , T X 7 8 6 2 0
512.858.4725 • cityofdrippingsprings.com

Pa g e 4 of  4

ZONING AMENDMENT SUBMITTAL 

CHECKLIST
STAFF APPLICANT

☐ ☐ C omp l eted  A p p l i ca ti on  F orm - i n cl ud i n g  a l l  req ui red  s i g n a tures  a n d  n ota ri z ed
☐ ☐ A p p l i ca ti on  F ee-Z on i n g  A men d men t or PD D  A men d men t ( r efer  to F ee S ch edule )  

☐ ☐

PD F / D i g i ta l  C op i es  of a l l  s ubmi tted  D ocumen ts           

When submitting digital files, a cover sheet must be included outlining what 
digital contents are included.

☐ ☐ B i l l i n g  C on ta ct F orm
☐ ☐ G I S  D a ta

☐ ☐
O utd oor L i g h ti n g  O rd i n a n ce C omp l i a n ce A g reemen t - s i g n ed  w i th  a tta ch ed  
p h otos / d ra w i n g s  ( r eq uir ed if m ar k ed “ Y es ( Req uir ed) ”  on above L ig h ting  
Or dinance S ection of ap p lication)

☐ ☐ L eg a l  D es cri p ti on
☐ ☐ C on cep t Pl a n
☐ ☐ Pl a n s
☐ ☐ M a p s
☐ ☐ A rch i tectura l  E l ev a ti on  
☐ ☐ E x p l a n a ti on  f or req ues t ( attach  ex tr a sh eets if necessar y)
☐ ☐ I n f orma ti on  a bout p rop os ed  us es  ( attach  ex tr a sh eets if necessar y)
☐ ☐ Publ i c Noti ce S i g n   ( r efer  to F ee S ch edule )
☐ ☐ Proof  of  O w n ers h i p -T a x  C erti f i ca te or D eed
☐ ☐ C op y  of  Pl a n n ed  D ev el op men t D i s tri ct ( if ap p licable )

☐ ☐
D i g i ta l  C op y  of  th e Prop os ed  Z on i n g  or Pl a n n ed  D ev el op men t D i s tri ct 
A men d men t

A ll r eq uir ed item s and infor m ation ( including  all ap p licable above listed ex h ibits and fees)  m ust be r eceived by 
th e C ity for  an ap p lication and r eq uest to be consider ed com p lete.  Incomplete submissions will not be accepted. 
B y sig ning  below ,  I  ack now ledg e th at I  h ave r ead th r oug h  and m et th e above r eq uir em ents for  a com p lete 
subm ittal:

A p p l i ca n t S i g n a ture D a te

B y sig ning  below ,  I  ack now ledg e
subm ittal:

A p p l i ca n t S i g n a ture

October 14, 2021

HaysCAD parcel map
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

46

Item 3.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


Received on/by:

Project Number:  _____-_____
Only filled out by staff

BILLING CONTACT FORM

Project Name:   

Project Address:   

Project Applicant Name:  

Billing Contact Information 

Name:

Mailing Address:    

Email:  Phone Number:  

Type of Project/Application (check all that apply): 

� Alternative Standard � Special Exception
� Certificate of Appropriateness � Street Closure Permit
� Conditional Use Permit � Subdivision
� Development Agreement � Waiver
� Exterior Design � Wastewater Service
� Landscape Plan � Variance
� Lighting Plan � Zoning
� Site Development Permit � Other

Applicants are required to pay all associated costs associated with a project’s application for a 
permit, plan, certificate, special exception, waiver, variance, alternative standard, or agreement, 
regardless of City approval. Associated costs may include, but are not limited to, public notices 
and outside professional services provided to the City by engineers, attorneys, surveyors, 
inspectors, landscape consultants, lighting consultants, architects, historic preservation 
consultants, and others, as required. Associated costs will be billed at cost plus 20% to cover 
the City’s additional administrative costs. Please see the online Master Fee Schedule for more 
details. By signing below, I am acknowledging that the above listed party is financially 
accountable for the payment and responsibility of these fees. 

Signature of Applicant Date

26700 Ranch Road 12

Jon Thompson, J Thompson Professional Consulting, LLC

26700 Ranch Road 12 Zoning Amendment

Patrick Vlaskovits, Lodestar Bureau

PO Box 160266

Austin, Texas 78716

pv@lodestar.company (512) 774-7867

accountable for the payment and responsibility of these fees. 

Signature of Applicant 
October 14, 2021

47

Item 3.



Planning and Zoning Commission  
Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
December 28, 2020 

Project No:  VAR2021-0022 

Project Planner:  Tory Carpenter, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: 102 S Bluff Street Barn Expansion 

Property Location: 102 South Bluff Street, Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

Legal Description: W T CHAPMAN #5 LOT 1,2,3,4,7,8 BLK 1 9-2210-17-02 & 0.68 

Applicant: Jon Thompson, J Thompson Professional Consulting 

Property Owner: Tejas Heritage Homes, LLC 

Request: Applicant is requesting a special exception to expand a nonconforming structure.  

VAR2021-0022 

Barn Expansion 

48

Item 4.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

Overview  

The applicant is requesting a special exception to allow the expansion of a nonconforming structure.  

2.24.1. Upon written request of the property owner, the BOA may grant special exceptions to the provisions of 

section 2.A. (Nonconforming Uses), limited to the following, and in accordance with the following standards: 

(a)Expansion of a nonconforming use within an existing structure provided that, in the case of a nonconforming 

residential use, such expansion does not increase the number of dwelling units to more than the number existing 

when the use first became nonconforming; or 

(b)Expansion of the gross floor area of a nonconforming structure provided that such expansion does not decrease 

any existing setback; or 

(c)Change from one nonconforming use to another, reconstruction of a nonconforming structure that has been 

totally destroyed, or resumption of a nonconforming use previously abandoned, only upon finding that the failure 

to grant the special exception deprives the property owner of substantially all use or economic value of the land. 

This request is associated with subpart (b) above, which allows expansion of a nonconforming structure provided that 

such expansion does not decrease any existing setback. The applicant is requesting to expand a barn and convert it into a 

single-family residence. This barn is currently 2 feet from the side property line; however, the expansion would meet the 5 

foot required side setback.  

 

 

Surrounding Properties 

 
 

 
49

Item 4.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are outlined in the 

table below:  

 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Future Land Use 

North 

Government, Utility, 

Institutional (GUI), 

Commercial Services 

(CS) 

City Hall, Office & 

Retail (Spring Bluff 

Center)  

Not Shown on the Future 

Land Use Map 

East 
General Retail with a 

Conditional Use Overlay 
Existing residential uses 

South 

Single-Family Attached 

Residential District (SF-

5) Garden Home 

Garden Homes 

West Local Retail (LR) 

Commercial 

Development/ Vacant 

Building 

 

Property History 

On November 11, 2021, the City Council approved a zoning amendment and conditional overlay which would allow 

development of this site of 6 single-family residences with a base zoning of SF-3.  

Approval Criteria for Special Exceptions (2.22.2-Zoning Ordinance) 

Approval Criteria Staff Comments 
1. there are special circumstances or conditions 

affecting the land involved such that the literal 

enforcement of the provisions of this Chapter 

would deprive the applicant of the reasonable use 

of the land; and 

The interpretation of the code will not deprive the 

applicant of the reasonable use of the land, this is a 

special circumstance where the intent of the code is being 

met by providing the required amount of parking within 

300ft of the property.  

2. the special exception is necessary for the 

preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 

property right of the applicant; and By preserving 

the natural features and topography of the land; 

and 

While the applicant could use the existing structure as is, 

this special exception is required to expand the structure 

and to convert it into a residence.  

3. the granting of the special exception will not be 

detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, 

or injurious to other property within the area; and 

The special exception will not be detrimental to the 

public health, safety, or welfare. 

4. the granting of the special exception constitutes a 

minimal departure from this Chapter; and 

The granting of this special exception is a minimal since 

the expansion meets the required 5-foot side setbacks.   

5. the subject circumstances or conditions giving rise 

to the alleged hardship are not self-imposed, are 

not based solely on economic gain or loss, and do 

not generally affect most properties in the vicinity 

of the property; and 

There is no self-imposed hardship as this structure was 

constructed prior to current setback requirements.  

6. Granting the special exception is in harmony with 

the spirit, general purpose, and intent of this 

Chapter so that:  

a.  the public health, safety and welfare may 

be secured; and  

b. that substantial justice may be done. 

The granting of this special exception is in harmony with 

the spirt, general purpose, and intent of this chapter.  

 
50

Item 4.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Additionally, this request meets the requirement that the expansion not decrease any existing setbacks on the property.  

Summary 

Based on the above findings staff believes that the intent of the code is being met, that the special exception will not cause 

any undue harm to the properties within the vicinity and recommends approval of the special exception. 

Public Notification 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News (June 11, 2020), signs 

were posted on the-site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the 

site were notified of the Special Exception request. 

  

Recommended Action Recommend approval of the requested special exception with staff and any 

additional conditions deemed necessary by the Commission 

Alternatives/Options Recommend denial of the special exception; recommend approval of the special 

exception with no or alternate conditions.  

Budget/Financial impact N/A 

Public comments None received at this time 

Enforcement Issues  N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Element N/A 

 

51

Item 4.



52

Item 4.



53

Item 4.



54

Item 4.



55

Item 4.



56

Item 4.

mperkins
Line

mperkins
Typewritten Text
Document No. 21062587)



57

Item 4.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



58

Item 4.



59

Item 4.



Civil Engineering - Planning - Geospatial
7401 B. Highway 71 W, Suite 160
Austin, Texas 78735, Phone: (512)-583-2600
www.doucetengineers.com
TBPELS Firm #10105800 / TBPE Firm #3937

60

Item 4.

mperkins
Rectangle



Planning and Zoning Commission  

Planning Department Staff Report 

 
 

 

 

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
December 28, 2021 

Project No:  CUP2021-0006 

Project Planner:  Tory Carpenter, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: 106 Bonnie Drive Accessory Dwelling Unit 

Property Location: 106 Bonnie Drive, Dripping Springs, Texas 78620 

Legal Description: Lot 31 Block A Dripping Springs Heights 

Applicant: Todd Larsen / Bruce Wallace 

Property Owner: Meadow Oaks Ranch LLC 

Request: Conditional use permit for an accessory dwelling unit 

Staff Recommendation:  

Staff recommends approval of the CUP, subject to conditions as outlined in the staff report.  

61

Item 5.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                     CUP2021-0006 
 
Background 

Ch. 30 Exhibit A § 1.6 of the Development Code defines the following: 

 Accessory dwelling: A secondary living space that is on-site with a primary living space and that may be contained 

within the space structure as the primary, or may be contained in a separate structure. Occupants of secondary living 

spaces typically include a caretaker, servant, or farm worker employed by the owner/occupant, or a guest or family 

member of the owner/occupant.  

 

 SF-1 Single-Family Residential District: A zoning district intended to provide for development on low-density, 

detached, single-family residences on lots of at least one (1) acre in size.  

Overview 

There is an existing ≈ 2,000 square foot, 4 bedroom home on the property. This home is served by an existing on-site septic 

system.  

The applicant is proposing the construction of a ≈ 1,600 square foot, 3 bedroom accessory dwelling unit on the property. 

The applicant intends to install a separate septic system for the accessory dwelling unit.  

SF-1 Code Requirements 

 Code requirement 

Front Setback Twenty-five feet (25') 

Rear Setback Twenty-five feet (25') 

Side Setback 

Total of forty (40) feet combining 

both side yards with a minimum of 

fifteen feet (15') on either side. 

Setback for Garage 

Side-Entry Garages: Single-family 

homes with side-entry garages 

where lot frontage is only to one 

street (not a corner lot) shall have a 

minimum of twenty-five feet (25') 

from the door face of the garage or 

carport to the side property line for 

maneuvering. 

Height  

Accessory Building(s): Maximum 

twenty-five feet (25') for other 

accessory buildings, including a 

detached garage or accessory 

dwelling units. 

Impervious Cover Thirty Percent (30%) 

Table 1 Code Requirements 

The applicant will need to provide two off-street parking spaces for the ADU, in addition to the two off-street parking spaces 

required for the primary structure, as written in the Code per: 

Chapter 30 Exhibit A: §5.6 - Parking based on use 

5.6.1 Residential  

(a) Single-family residential including SF-1, SF-2, SF-3 and SF-4: Two per dwelling unit 

 

The Accessory Dwelling Unit will connect to utilities as outlined: 

Water: Dripping Springs Water Supply Corp. (DSWSC). The structure would connect into existing 1” Water Line 

that services the primary structure.  

Wastewater: Proposed ADU will install a new septic system.  

Electricity: Pedernales Electric Cooperative, Inc. (PEC) 

 

62

Item 5.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                     CUP2021-0006 
 

 

 

Surrounding Properties 

The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are outlined in the table 

below: 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Comprehensive Plan 

North Commercial Services (CS)  Single family residential 

The property is located 

on the edge of a 

mixed-use activity 

center on the Future 

Land Use Map 

East 
Single- Family Residential 

– Low Density (SF-1)  
Single family residential 

South 
Single- Family Residential 

– Low Density (SF-1) 
Single Family Residential  

West 
Government, Utility, 

Institutional (GUI)  
Hays County Tax Office 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

63

Item 5.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                     CUP2021-0006 
 
Approval Criteria for Conditional Use Permit Review (3.17.6-Zoning Ordinance) 

Approval Criteria Staff Comments 

1. The proposed use at the specified location is 

consistent with the policies embodied in the 

Comprehensive Plan; 

The Compressive Plan addresses accessory dwelling units 

in the Comprehensive Plan Goal 3.1. ADUs are an option 

for supporting housing options in Dripping Springs. 

2. The proposed use is consistent with the general 

purpose and intent of the applicable zoning district 

regulations; 
The subject property is zoned Single-family Residential 

District – Low Density (SF-1). Accessory dwelling units 

are a listed conditional use in this zoning district. 

3. The proposed use meets all supplemental standards 

specifically applicable to the use, as established in 

the Development Standards, Section 5; 

The ADU will be required to meet all development 

standards. 

 

4. The proposed use is compatible with and preserves 

the character and integrity of adjacent 

development and neighborhoods, and (as required 

by the particular circumstances) includes 

improvements or modifications (either on-site or 

within the public rights-of-way) to mitigate 

development-related adverse impacts, including 

but not limited to the following: 

 

a. Adequate ingress and egress to 

property and proposed structures 

thereon with particular reference to 

vehicular and pedestrian safety and 

convenience, and access in case of 

fire; 

 Yes.  

b. Off-street parking areas, loading areas, 

and pavement type; 

The accessory dwelling unit will have adequate parking. 

Open air off-street parking will be provided.  

c. Refuse and service areas; 

 
Adequate 

d. Utilities with reference to location, 

availability, and compatibility; 
Adequate 

e. Screening and buffering, features to 

minimize visual impacts, and/or 

setbacks from adjacent uses; 

There will be no new permanent fencing with this 

additional structure. Any existing fencing will remain.  

f. Control of signs, if any; 

 
N/A 

g. Control of exterior lighting with 

reference to glare, traffic safety, 

economic effect, and compatibility 

and harmony with properties in the 

district; 

Lighting for the new structure will match the current 

house structure in accordance with city codes. 

h. Required yards and open space; 

 

The ADU will have access to the open space and yard of 

the main dwelling per the attached survey 

i. Height and bulk of structures; 

 
The ADU will match the proposed elevations 

j. Hours of operation; 

 
N/A 

k. Exterior construction material, 

building design, and building facade 

treatment; 

The structure uses a variety of building materials.   

64

Item 5.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                     CUP2021-0006 
 

l. Roadway adjustments, traffic-control 

devices or mechanisms, and access 

restrictions to control traffic flow or 

divert traffic as may be needed to 

reduce or eliminate development-

generated traffic on neighborhood 

streets; and 

N/A 

m. Provision for pedestrian 

access/amenities/areas; N/A 

5. The proposed use is not materially detrimental to 

the public health, safety, convenience and welfare, 

or results in material damage or prejudice to other 

property in the vicinity; and, 

 

The use is not materially detrimental to the public health, 

safety, convenience and welfare, or results in material 

damage or prejudice to other property in the vicinity. 

6. Noise; N/A 

7. Odors; and N/A 

8. Dust. N/A 

 

Summary 

Staff finds that the inclusion of an ADU is compliant with the vision of the Comprehensive Plan 2016 which was adopted 

by the City Council on November 15, 2016. The Comprehensive Plan 2016 outlines several goals and policies which can 

serve as a framework for assisting in evaluating the applicant’s request. The proposed ADU request meets the below goals 

and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan.  

Chapter 3: Livability / Quality of Life 

 § 3.1: Support housing options in Dripping Springs 

“Accessory dwelling units (ADUs) are another opportunity to incorporate lower cost housing options into the 

existing fabric of the community. These units provide an option for older residents who want to downsize but 

remain in Dripping Springs or young couples just starting out. They also provide an option for homeowners 

who may want or need extra income, allowing them to remain in their homes by providing supplemental 

income. It will be important to explore best practices from other communities and establish a policy that 

reflects the values of Dripping Springs and protects neighborhood integrity for existing residents.” 

 

 

Staff recommends approval of the CUP, subject to the following conditions: 

 

Based on the proposed land use, compatibility with surrounding properties, and the Comprehensive Plan, staff recommends 

the following conditions:  

1. Time Limit: The CUP does not expire.  

2. A minimum of two off-street parking spaces for the Accessory Dwelling Unit must be provided in 

addition to any other parking requirements. 

3. The Accessory Dwelling Unit may not be sold separately from the primary structure. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
65

Item 5.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                     CUP2021-0006 
 
The below is an excerpt of the Code for the procedures that P&Z should take for CUPs: 

Chapter 30 Exhibit A: §3.17 – Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 

3.17.5 Procedures for CUPs 

(a) P&Z Recommendation: Upon receipt of the recommendation from the city administrator, the P&Z 

shall conduct a public hearing in order to formulate its recommendations to the city council on the 

CUP application. Following the public hearing, the P&Z shall recommend approval, approval subject 

to modification, or denial of the proposal to the city council. If the appropriateness of the use cannot 

be assured at the location, the P&Z shall recommend denial of the application as being incompatible 

with existing uses or with other uses permitted by right in the district.  

 

Public Notification 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the 

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of the 

request.  

 

Attachments 

Attachment 1 – Conditional Use Permit Application  

Attachment 2 – Proposed Site Plan, Example Elevations, Floor Plans 

 

Recommended Action: 
Recommend approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit, with staff and 

any additional conditions deemed necessary by the Commission. 

Alternatives/Options: 
Recommend denial of the Conditional Use Permit; recommend approval of 

the Conditional Use Permit with no, or alternate, conditions. 

Budget/Financial Impact:    None calculated at this time. 

Public Comments: None at this time 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

Comprehensive Plan 
Element: 

3.1 - Livability / Quality of Life 

Support housing options in Dripping Springs 

 

66

Item 5.



+

DRIPPING SPRINGS
Texos

City of Dripping Springs

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street . MAILING: PO Box 384

DrippinB Springs, TX 78620

5L2.A5A.47 25 . cityof drippingsprings.com

t / ICONDITIONAL USE PERMIT A ICATION
Case Number (staff use only): _-_

tr NEW APPLICATION r] EXTENSION OF A PREVIOUSLY APPROVED CUP

CONTACT INFORMAT]ON

PROPERTY OWNER NAME (2. W4,tr?C€

STREET ADDRESS lDb ?aJNE, 90

,,n ?tuktM ahthg STATE ZIP CODE 1M?-a
pnoNeSl?-.416 :UoL EM 

^tL 
T@6) A041v149 6 gat€ co A

APPLICANT NAME 'TawL,*lseJ
COMPANY

STREET ADDRESS

( Lalt

lnD) ?6f az-sivs1
CITY ArgnJ STATE ]X ZIP CODE 18111
pHoNES[?-.ffiL .zqL wo e qD5?ct1%?a!,co,-1EMAIL

Page 1 of 4
67

Item 5.



r, D Dn t'I n oo o

Wevvlt,uoe/DM YN'K}PROPERTY OWNER NAME

PROPERTY ADDRESS lob %"1 )rq T DL,nntA 4o,^,tqt. 1A"o
CU RRENT LEGAL DESCRIPTION ll(7t buw A vqePllcn&ttit, l+Elaw
TAX ID#

LOCATED IN fi CIfl LIMITS

D EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION

CURRENT ZONING *-L
PROPOSED USE 9?- L
REASON FOR REQUEST

(Attoch extrq sheet if necessory) 6w" ilats, lozrtoJ v ftdauff
w/aora.*ru 4erno

PROPERTY INFORMATION

COMPLIANCE WITH OUTDOOR LIGHTING ORDINANCE? *
(See ottoched ogreement).

! vrs lnreurReo)* tl yES (voLUNTARy)* E No*

* lf proposed subdivision is in the City Limits, compliance with Lighting Ordinance is mandatory. lf proposed

subdivision is in the ETJ, compliance is mandatory when required by a Development Agreement or as a

condition of an Alternative Standard/Special Exception/Variance/Waiver.

Voluntary compliance is :!Iq!g!y encouraged by those not required by above criteria (see Outdoor Lighting tob

on the CODS webpoge ond online Lighting Ordinonce under Code of Ordinonces tob lor more inlormotionl.

PHysrcAL: 511 MercerStreet . lvhuNc: PO Box 384 . DrippingSprings,IXTa62O
512.A58.4725 . cityofdripDinqsDrinqs.com

Page 2 o{ 4

l?paob

68

Item 5.



APPTICANT'S SIGNATURE

The und
further,

ersigned, hereby confirJns that he/she/it i

that T.ooL,ol-t"J
respect to this Application and the City's zoning amendment process.

(As recorded in the Hays County Property Deed Records, Vol. _, Pg._.)
-f-qol+td,

s the owner of the above described real property and

is authorized to act as my agent and representative with

Notary Public, State of Texas

Name

d..
Title

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF HAYS

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the 

- 

day of

5

5

I

2O1 by

My Commission Expires:

Name of Applicant

PHysrcAL: 5ll Mercerstreet . MATLTNG: POBox384 . Dripping Springs,fx7a670
512.85E.4725 . citvofdripDinqsprinss.com

Page 3 of 4
69

Item 5.



All required items ond informotion (including oll opplicoble obove listed exhibits and fees) must be received

the city for on application ond request to be considered complete. lncomplete submissions will not be dccepted.

ow, locknowledge thot lhove reod through ond met the obove

Applicant Signature Date

APPI.ICANTSTAFF

su

by

By signin requirements for o complete

u ls lut

tr d

B d
PDF/Digital Copies of all submitted Documents

When submitting digital files, a cover sheet must be included outlining what
digital contents are included.

d Application Fee (refer to Fee Schedule)tr

d Billing Contact Formtr

tr J
Outdoor Lighting Ordinance Compliance Agreement - signed with attached
photos/drawings (required if morked "Yes {Required}" on obove Liqhting
Ordinonce Section of opplication)

tr B Legal Description
tr d Plans

tr w Maps/Site Plan/Plat
Arch itectural Elevation (if applicoble)tr il
Explanation for request (ottoch extro sheets if necessory){
Public Notice Sign (re.fer ta Fee Schedule\ Vlvp (6( f katl(4Dtr
Proof of Ownership-Tax Certificate or Deed

PHysrcAL: 51L MercerStreet . MruNc: POBox384 . DrippinB Springs, Tx 78620
51 2.858.4725 . citvofdrippinqsprinqs.com

Page 4 of4

CHECKLIST

Completed Application Form - including all required signatures and notarized

fl
d

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT SUBMITTAI.

70

Item 5.

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight

wrivera
Highlight



Received on/by:

Project Number:
only Iilled out by stoff

DRIPPING SPRINGS
Tcxc s

BILLING CONTACT FOR}I

l2b %a,JNv V.o t-bt h,tfe
Project Address: Db gbJntoV-D fu^(fi
Pr<lject Name:

Project Applicant Name: 0

Billing Contact Information

lioo l-*r,-t

J N. Tboza

Name:

Mailing Address: 10b € t

Emai{iM,G, fa,f." n phoneNumber: 5lZ.q1b. zooz-

Type of Project/Application (check all that apply):

n Altemative Standard

Ll Certificate of Appropriateness

fl Conditional Use Permit

fl DevelopmentAgreement

tl Exterior Design

LJ Landscape Plan

lJ Lighting Plan

t1 Site Development Permit

Applicants are required to pay all associated cosls associated with a project's applicationfor a
permit, plan, certificate, special exception, waiver, variance, alternative standard, or agreemenl,
regardless of City approval. Associated costs may include, but are not limited to, public notices
and outside proJbssional services provided to the City by engineers, attorneys, surveyors,
inspectors, landscape consultonts, lighting consultanls, architects, historic preservction
consultants, and others, as required. Associated costs will be billed al cost plus 20o% to cover
the Cily's ddditional administrative costs. Please see the onlirre Masler Fee Schedulefor more
details. B,- .s

tuccounttble
below, I am acknowledging that the above listed party is.financially

e payment and responsibility of these .fees

11 /ry/21

tgn

Signature of Applicant Date

J

SdtrtJ N %7n

! Special Exception

I Street Closure Permit

tr Subdivision

I Waiver

I Wastewater Service

t--l Variance

tl Zoning

6 o*er -4,8r.-lWe-(aa t (-

71

Item 5.



t,,

t CHRISTINE NIXON
,i,

it
Etisting SPrinkler

Heads to be Relocated Four K.Ra n Lou
Angle Nozzle #4
28 Rad us I80"

1" Purple PVC

Its< ,rn,
Existinq AquaSafe
AS-500

Existing Waler
Line to Remain
10' from OSSF

s 57"44'04', E 388.1o',

Z

q
q

a

a
Ec

o

m

-:
a?

lbo

N 58'56',57" W 34 ,zI'
No trees obstructions,

.etc 5ha be wrth n

10' oi spraylrcad Proposed Water
Line to be Sleeved
if wilhin 10' of OSSF

1O'BL

Exlsting Two
Wrv CleAn.Oul

-ffn1

IExisting
4'Bedroom
Home

r
I

I

I

i,I
dl
P1

Proposed
Guesl House

10 BL'

./

I

u rle[
n gineering

11/11/2A21Dcte
Drcwn b y cnri=tinu N ixon

106 Bonnie
Dripping Springs, TX

Hoys Co

lian I Todd Lcrsen
I

Scole: 1 50'

\
\

B

72

Item 5.



a

ii
3

E

6
OE
aa
vigHBEl 3zeo9F.r Iaatu:oEfreE] H

=ENa4EHE
o3
AEr{g
OE2iqE
IdEftEEE

nl

I637-5

FRONT ELEVAfIONLEFT SIDE EI,EVATION

1

li.
liLllt

lrlll
lti't'Tx

REAR ETEVATION

eLl
E,E

RIC}IT SIDE EI,EVA'IION

Fr

73

Item 5.



DOOR SC}IEDIJI,E

MAIN TLOOR PLAN Lr0td4 160&

tuA wq

foW?ATL

CEIIJNG JOIST FRAMING PI,AN

WINDOW SCHEDUI,E

GENEBAIi NOIESAREA SCSEDUI,E

I

t[,
I )

rI
7

J

t. !

\

\
{

:]

II
n
tr

E

\

G)*-l I

.oi

X
!
I

i
i

I

i

I

I
I

!

:!
!

I

@ I

a
n

d

E

*
4

E
B

EI

I
?
E

E
E

E

E
E

e
e

I
g

o
a
a
fr
Tdz
o
th
14
o
fr
rq
Et
fq
o
e
az
s
TTd4

I637-4

WAIiI,I,EOEND

-,.t.*fr--6€

a

I

I
i
I
I

tuCIHdu

74

Item 5.



o.:..:.:.::..:a::.,:.:::::::a:.. :tr

EI.ECTRICA' SYMBOI.S

E
B

€

t.f.i*
rT--t

ffiil

ENERGY ErFICIENT WAI,L
CONSIRUCIION DETAII.S

EI,ECTRICAL PLAN +

I1r
t&

a
WAIT INSULATION SCHEDI'IA

GABI,E ROOP RAI(X DETAII^S

I

I
1

I

I

it
lt.*t,^

,,1r.
"., t,,.",1r. MECHAMCAJ, PT,AN

,
I

I
! PLT'MBINC PI,AN

i
I

TTPICAL FRAMING DEIAIL

E

L. !-.t"" 1", -t",t.. t..

\_-"*;**__* ErkffiE

-tr
"\-

E

u

fr

e
e

I

E
6

h

E

E
B
g

E
2

e

6
a

o
e
aiil
E]z
o
at)
t4
o
fr
lr|

M
{lr.
o
e
ozd
dfr
m

I637

EIECTRICAL PLAN

i
i

N-I-
i
!
I
t

fuCHd

75

Item 5.



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

City of Dripping Springs 

PO Box 384 

511 Mercer Street 

Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

Submitted By: Andrea Cunningham, City Secretary 

Commission Meeting 

Date: 

December 28, 2021 

Agenda Item Wording: Discuss and consider possible action regarding the Planning & Zoning 

Commission meeting schedule for November and December 2022 

meetings. 

Agenda Item Requestor: Christian Bourguignon, Commissioner 

Summary/Background:  The Commission approved the 2022 meeting calendar at the October 12, 

2021, regular meeting. The calendar was presented with no adjustments for 

holiday weeks and meetings were rescheduled if they occurred on a holiday 

or city hall closure date. However, after some consideration, the Commission 

has requested to reevaluate the meetings scheduled for November and 

December 2022 that may occur during a holiday week. 

Because cases presented to the Planning & Zoning Commission must follow 

a strict timeline, the Uniform Submittal Schedule approved by the City 

Council at their December 7, 2021, regular meeting will need to be amended 

should any meetings be rescheduled. 

November 2022 Meetings 

 November 8, 2022: this meeting does fall on a holiday week, and the 

City is closed Friday, November 11th in observance of Veterans Day. 

Possible reschedule dates are: 

o Wednesday, November 2nd  

o Wednesday, November 16th  

o Thursday, November 17th 

 November 22, 2022: this meeting does fall on a holiday week, and the 

City is closed Thursday – Friday, November 24 – 25 in observance of 

Thanksgiving. Possible reschedule dates are: 

o Wednesday, November 16th 

o Thursday, November 17th 

o Tuesday, November 29th 

o Wednesday, November 30th  

 

76

Item 6.



December 2022 Meetings 

 December 13, 2022: this meeting has no conflicts 

 December 27, 2022: this meeting does fall on a holiday week, and the 

City is closed Monday, December 26th in observance of Christmas. 

Possible reschedule dates are: 

o Wednesday, December 21st (CC meets on the 20th) 

o Thursday, December 22nd  

o Wednesday, December 28th 

o Thursday, December 29th  

Attachments: Approved 2022 PZC Meeting Calendar 

Next Steps/Schedule: 1. Change meetings dates on all city calendars and distribute to staff, 

commission members and city council 

2. Amend Uniform Submittal Schedule 

 

77

Item 6.



City Hall Closures
SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

1 1 2 3 4 5 PZC Meetings
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 January 11
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 January 25

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 February 8
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 February 22
30 31 March 8

March 22
April 12

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT April 26
1 2 3 4 5 1 2 May 10

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 May 24
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 June 14
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 June 28
27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 July 12

July 26
August 9
Augsut 23

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT September 13
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 September 27
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 October 11

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 October 25
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 November 8
29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30 November 22

December 13
December 27

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 31

31

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

1 2 3 1

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

25 26 27 28 29 30 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

27 28 29 30 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

2022
JANUARY FEBRUARY

MARCH APRIL

Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings

NOVEMBER DECEMBER

MAY JUNE

JULY AUGUST

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

78

Item 6.



 

Projects with Approved Exceptions/Waivers 

All permits that are compliant with previous approvals can move forward normally.  

 

 

Date 

Approved 

Name of Project  Approved 

11/23/2021 Headwaters DA 

11/23/2021 Caliterra DA 

11/23/2021 Cannon Ranch PDD/WW Agreement 

11/23/2021 Driftwood/Driftwood 522 DAs 

11/23/2021 Ledgestone (MUD 4)  Consent to MUD 

11/23/2021 Wild Ridge Consent to MUD/WW Agreement 

11/23/2021 Big Sky Ranch PDD/WW Agreement 

11/23/2021 Arrowhead Ranch DA 

11/23/2021 Carter Tract DA and WW agreement (Caliterra)  

11/23/2021 Cortaro Final Plat and Septic 

11/23/2021 Village Grove Consent to MUD  

11/23/2021 New Growth MOU 

11/23/2021 PDD 11 PDD and WW Agreement 

11/23/2021 Parten Ranch DA 

12/1/2021 Heritage Subdivision DA/PDD/WW Agreement 

12/7/2021 Esperanza Approved Plats and Exceptions  

12/7/2021 Silver Creek (Waiver) Septic and Concept Plan 

12/20/2021 Bunker Ranch Phases 1-4; 

Hardy North 

Plats 

12/20/2021 Cannon East PDD Application - Ongoing 

79

Item 7.



Site Development Project Name
City Limits / 

ETJ
Location Description Status

SD2019-0006_Dog N Bone CL 310 Old Fitzhugh Rd Food Trailor and Site improvements Waiting on resubmittal

SD2019-0024 Jasons Deli CL 165 Hargraves Dr Restaurant Waiting on resubmittal

SD2019-0025 Merrit Hill Country Amendment CL 28725 RR 12 minor amendment Waiting on resubmittal

SD2019-0036 Hart Lane Homes ETJ 120 Hart Lane 3 SF homes Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0016 100 N Canyonwood Dr etj 100 N Canyonwood Dr 2 office buildings Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0024 421 Sportsplex Correction cl 421 Sportsplex adding retaining wall Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0027 Velocity Credit Union

limited 

purpose 

district

Lot 1 Block E of Bush Ranch 

Phase 1 Revised Subdivision

Construction of an assisted living building, parking 

areas, water service line, on-site sewage facility, and 

storm water detention pond. 

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0031 ATX Drainage and Landscaping ETJ 13400 Nutty Brown Road 
construction of a landscape yard, associated 6.055 

sqft office/warehouse and parking 
Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0042 31300 RR 12 Vet Clinic ETJ 31300 RR 12 permitting an existing gravel parking lot Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0045 12 South CL 4500 RR 12 
8,000 Sq ft warehouse w associated parking and 

drainage
Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0047 Dripping Springs RV Resort ETJ 3601 W US 290, Dripping Springs, 335 RV lots with associated roadway and drainage. All Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0048 Patriots Hall of Dripping Springs ETJ 3400 E US 290
New VFW Builiding with parking infrastructure and 

water quality
Approved w/ Conditions

SD2021-0005 Dripping Springs WWTP Expansion CL 23127 FM 150 W Expansion of the Wastewater treatment plant Under Review 

SD2021-0008 AHC Development (aka PDD 11) CL 27110 RR 12 

Construction of a new Multi-Familty complex and its 

necessary infrastructure and a public extension of S 

Rob Shelton Blvd 

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2021-0011 Blue Ridge Business Park CL 26228 RR 12
6 small office buildings with associated parking and 

utilities 
Waiting on resubmittal

SD2021-0012 Pet Paradise ETJ 13526 W Hwy 290

This project is a pet retreat facility with building, 

parking, and utilities.  The site will drain via a storm 

sewer network to an existing shared water quality 

pond.  

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2021-0013 Dreamland ETJ Waiting on resubmittal

SD2021-0014 Cottages East at Bunker Ranch CL Under Review 

SD2021-0022 Sawyer Ranch Lot 4A ETJ 13341 W US HWY 290
Commercial buildings, parking, utilities and sidewalks 

on 4.68 acres of the Sawyer Ranch subdivision
Waiting on resubmittal

SD2021-0025 DS Rapid Express Wash CL Fourstar Blvd Car Wash Approved

SD2021-0026 Belterra Mighty Fine ETJ Belterra Mighty Fine Burgers Approved

SD2021-0027 Driftwood Pond 2B Club Core ETJ Driftwood Club Core Water Quality Pond Approved w/ Conditions

SD2021-0028 Sawyer Ranch 33, Tract 3 CL Sawyer Ranch

Infrastructure Plan to Install and construct utilties, 

drainage, water quality, and street/driveway 

improvements for the entirety of the tract

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2021-0029 Jackson Lighting CL
Along US 290 near Sawyer Ranch 

Rd

Construction of new building for the Jackson Lighting 

business
Waiting on resubmittal

SD2021-0030 Belterra Townhomes ETJ Belterra
Seven townhome units with associated parking, 

sidewalk, utilities, and drainage
Waiting on resubmittal

SD2021-0031 Rob Shelton Blvd. Extension CL Rob Shelton An extension of Rob Shelton South bound per PDD 11 Under Review 

ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL PROJECTS

1

80

Item 8.



RFQ

Code Rewrite

Village Grove

New Growth

Cannon East

Plat Exemptions

PnZ Meetings

Moratorium

Ongoing Projects

DAWG Meeting on Wednesday, December 15

Selection Committee has be formed

81

Item 8.



Subdivision Project Name
City Limits / 

ETJ
Location Description Status

Driftwood Phase 3 ETJ 17901 RM 1826 1 lot subdivision Waiting on the County 

SUB2018-0038_Caliterra Ph 4 Sec 11_FP ETJ RR12 & FM 150 Subdivision of 108 Residential lots

Turned in Plat amendment adding 

additional ROW, Comments have 

been issued.

SUB2018-0061 Headwaters at Barton Creek_AP ETJ 2401 E Hwy 290 Edits to metes and bounds error
Waiting on resubmittal/ everyone 

approved as of 6/25/2019

SUB2019-0041 Headwaters Ph. 4 Sec. 6 CP ETJ
Intersection of Headwaters Blvd 

and Hazy Hills Loop
4 Lot subdivision Waiting on the County

SUB2019-0044 Caliterra Ph/2 Sec 7 Block F Lot 9 AP ETJ Peakside Circle amended plat waiting on resubmittal 

SUB2018-0055 Quik Trip #4133 Addition Minor Plat CL 16460 Sawyer Ranch Rd
remaining portion of tract A of the Sawyer Springs 

Subdivision P.R. 

waiting on resubmittal, now a 

zoning amendment, likely to turn 

into a plat if ReZoning is approved

SUB2021-0002 Roger Hanks Parkway Extension CL Roger Hanks Parkway

3120 LF of Collector Roadway. The infrastructure 

includes all associated streets, grading, and water 

quality improvements.

Waiting on Resubmittal 

SUB2021-0016 Driftwood Club Core Phase 3 SP and 

CP
ETJ Thurman Roberts Way

Project will be developed in a condominium regime with 

9 detached residential unites and a parking lot. The site 

will be accessed via driveway that ties to a driveway 

that is a part of Driftwood Club Core Phase 2 that ties to 

Thurman Roberts Way, 

Approved

SUB2021-0024 Crooked Oaks Amending Plat ETJ 823 Post Oak Drive Adjusting lot lines Under Review

SUB2021-0025 102 Rose Drive Minor Plat CL 102 Rose Drive 1 lot subdivision to create a legal lot Waiting on Resubmittal 

SUB2021-0029 Driftwood Creek Ph 2 Prelim Plat ETJ Thurman Roberts Way
23 lots on 19.30 acres for the Driftwood Ph 2 Prelim 

Plat 
Waiting on Resubmittal

SUB2021-0032 Daisy Acres Minor Plat ETJ 100 Daisy Lane Establish a lot Approved

SUB2021-0033 Arrowhead Ranch C-Store Minor Plat CL establish 2 commerical lots Waiting on Resubmittal

SUB2020-0028 CRTX Prelim Plat CL 27110 RR 12 Establish a lot Waiting on Resubmittal 

SUB2020-0029 CRTX Final Plat CL 27110 RR 12 Establish a lot Waiting on Resubmittal 

SUB2021-0034 Caliterra Ph 4 Sec 12 Construction 

Plans 
ETJ

Premier Park Loop amd Misty 

Meadows

42 singlfamily lots on 65.17 acres with associated 

infrastructure 
Approved with conditions

SUB2021-0035 Heritage Phase 2 Construction Plans CL
Sportsplex Drive (Heritage 

Development)

165 lot (162 residential lots, 2 drainage lots, and 1 

parkland lot), 33.96 acre Phase of the Heritage 

Subdivision

Waiting on Resubmittal

 SUB2021-0036 Springlake Lot 76A-1 Replat CL 501 Springlake Dr replating to 2 lots Approved with conditions

SUB2021-0038 Big Sky Ranch Phase 3 Construction 

Plans
CL Lone Peak Way Construction Plans for Phase 3 of Big Sky Ranch Waiting on Resubmittal

SUB2021-0039 Big Sky Ranch Phase 4 Construction 

Plans
CL Lone Peak Way Construction Plans for Phase 4 of Big Sky Ranch Under Review

SUB2021-0012 Caliterra Ph 4 Sec 12 FP ETJ Premier Park Loop 47 lots on 65.172 acres with associated infrastructure Waiting on Resubmittal

SUB2021-0047 Driftwood GRC Ph 3 Construction Plans ETJ Driftwood Ranch Drive
Proposing 30 single family lots, 1 open space lot and 3 

private street lots on 56.3328 acres
Approved with conditions

SUB2021-0048 Driftwood Ph 1 Section 4 Final Plat ETJ Thurman Roberts Way A one lot plat for 4.7233 acre land Waiting on Resubmittal

SUB2021-0049 Grand Prairie Lot 1 Replat CL 27950 RR 12 A replat of one lot of 1.698 acre Under Review

SUB2020-0034 Heritage Ph 1 Fp CL
Sportsplex Drive (Heritage 

Development)
Heritage Final Plat Waiting on Resubmittal

SUB2021-0050 Club Core Phase 4 Construction Plans ETJ Thurman Roberts Way Construction plans for Driftwood Club Core phase 4 Approved with conditions

SUB2021-0051 Hardy T Land Preliminary Plat ETJ 2901 W US 290 Condminium of 7 lots Administratively Incomplete

SUB2021-0053 Amending Plat of Creek Road Villas CL 1232 Creek Road Changing the configuration of lots 1 & 2 Under Review

SUB2021-0054 Driftwood Subdivision Phase 2 Final 

Plat
ETJ Thurman Roberts Way Final Plat for Driftwood phase 2 Under Review

SUB2021-0052 Cannon Ranch Preliminary Plat CL Cannon Ranch Road 100.58 acre development of 375 lots Approved

SUB2021-0056 Driftwood Subdivision Phase 2 

Construction Plans
ETJ Thurman Roberts Way

Proposing 18 single family lots, 3 open space lots and 

2 private street lots on 19.30 acres
Approved with conditions

SUB2021-0055 210 Creek Road CL 210 Creek Road Amending plat on 4 acres Approved

SUB2021-0057 Headwaters at Barton Creek, Phase 3 

Construction Plans
ETJ

Intersection of Hazy Hills Loop & 

Roy Branch Road

172 Residential Lots, Open Space, MUD Utilities with 

associated WQ and drainage improvements
Waiting on Resubmittal

SUB2021-0058 Paren Ranch Phase 4 Final Plat ETJ
1.5 miles SW of the intersection of 

Nutty Brown Road and FM 1826

87 Single family lots, 4 (OS/drainage/WQ), 1 Utility lot 

on 73.81 acres
Waiting on Resubmittal

SUB2021-0059 Headwaters Phases 3-5 Preliminary 

Plat Minor Revision
ETJ

Intersection of Headwaters Blvd 

and Hazy Hills Loop

Minor Revision of previously approved preliminary plat, 

moving 6 lots and a slight change in road placement
Approved with conditions

SUB2021-0060 Parten Ranch 6 & 7 Preliminary Plat ETJ
End of Parten Ranch Parkway near 

Running Bird Road Intersection

126 Lots on 129.03 acres. 122 are residential whil 4 

are open space and drainage
Approved

SUB2021-0061 Big Sky Ranch Phase 3 Final Plat CL Big Sky Ranch 224 Lots on 81.71 acres. 215 are Residential Waiting on Resubmittal

SUB2021-0062 Big Sky Ranch Phase 4 Final Plat CL Big Sky Ranch 136 Lots on 24.86 acres. 134 are Residential Waiting on Resubmittal

SUB2021-0063 Esperanza Phase 2 Preliminary Plat CL 4900 Bell Springs Road
106 Lots on 107.76 acres, 105 being residential with 

the average size of lots being 3/4
Approved

SUB2020-0040 Esperanza Phase 2 Final Plat CL 4901 Bell Springs Road
107 Lots on 107.76 acres, 105 being residential with 

the average size of lots being 3/4
Approved

SUB2021-0064 Caliterra Phase 4 Section 11 Final Plat ETJ RR 12 in the Caliterra Subdivision
109 Lots on 37.911 acres, 103 being residential with 

average size of lots being 0.262 acres
Approved

SUB2021-0065 Heritage Phase 2 Final Plat CL
Sportsplex Drive (Heritage 

Development)

162 Lots on 69.999 acres, 160 of which are residential 

with an average lot size of 0.143 acres
Waiting on Resubmittal

SUB2021-0066 Driftwood GRC Lot 11A Amending Plat ETJ
258 and 266 Club Ranch Court, 

Buda, TX 78610
Combining two lots into one Waiting for Resubmittal

82

Item 8.


	Top
	Item 1.	PZC: 12.14.21 Minutes
	12.14.21 PZC Minutes_draft

	Item 2.	SUB22021-0054C Driftwood Ph 2 Final
	Application
	SUB2021-0054 Staff Report
	SUB2021-0054 Plat

	Item 3.	ZA2021-0011: 26700 RR 12
	ZA2021-00011 STAFF REPORT PZ
	Zoning Use Chart_GR
	ZA2021-0011 Application

	Item 4.	VAR2021-0022: 102 Bluff St
	VAR2021-0022 P&Z Staff report
	VAR2021-0022 Cover Letter & Application
	VAR2021-0022 Elevations
	VAR2021-0022 Site Plan

	Item 5.	CUP2021-0006: 106 Bonnie ADU
	CUP2021-0006 Staff Report P&Z
	CUP2021-0006 Application
	CUP2021-0006 Plans

	Item 6.	PZC: 2022 Meeting Schedule - Holidays
	PZC Meeting Calendar Nov and Dec 2022
	PZC 2022 Meeting Calendar_approved

	Item 7.	RPT: Moratorium Report
	List of Approved Projects

	Item 8.	PZC: Planning Department Report
	Planning Dept Report 12.22.21

	Bottom

